
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska        October 14, 2003 
                 Page 1 of 5 

 

      City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Regular Meeting 
October 14, 2003 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on October 14, 2003, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Cooper called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL, DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 Jim Cooper   Brian Fish 
  Steve Carrington  Tony Pippel 
  Kathrine Vanover  John Combs 
 Brad Hanson 
   
Also in attendance were the following: 
  
 Tom Healy, City Manager 

Jack Snodgrass, City Attorney 
Janette Persinger, City Clerk 

 
C. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Resolution No. 1321: Certifying the Results of the October 7, 2003, Regular City 
Election 
 

MOVED BY: Pippel  
SECONDED BY: Fish 

To adopt resolution no. 1321 

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Item 2 – Oath Administered to Newly Elected City Council Members 
 
Janette Persinger, City Clerk administered the oath to newly elected Council Members John 
Combs and Ken Erbey.  
 
Item 3 – Appointment of Mayor Pro-Tempore 
MOVED BY: Pippel  
SECONDED BY: Combs 

To accept Mayor Cooper’s recommendations to appoint 
Council Member Pippel as Mayor Pro-Tempore 

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
MOVED BY: Vanover  
SECONDED BY: Hanson 

To accept Mayor Cooper’s recommendations to appoint 
Council Member Combs as Mayor Pro-Tempore in the 
absence of Council Member Pippel 

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska        October 14, 2003 
                 Page 2 of 5 

Item 4 – Certificate of Appreciation to Council Member Fish 
 
Mayor Cooper presented Council Member Fish with a certificate of appreciation for his service to 
the city council. Mayor Cooper read remarks written by Council Member Fish. Council Member 
Fish thanked fellow council members and citizens of Palmer for their support during his term as 
council member. Council Member Fish encouraged the council to continue on in their efforts to 
ensure that Palmer is “Alaska at its Best!”. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 
 
E. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Hanson. 
 
F. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
Unanimous consent – to approve the minutes of the 9-23-03 regular meeting.  
 
G. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Introduction – Ordinance No. 607-Z-54: Ratifying the Recommendation of the City 
Planning and Zoning Commission Concerning Requested Amendment to the Zoning Map 
by Petitioners to Rezone Alaska Rural Rehabilitation Corporation (ARRC) 2003 
Subdivision, Lot 1B 

2. Authorize Amendment of Agreement with Hattenburg, Dilley and Linnell Engineering for 
Additional Services for the Taxiway A Project 

3. Authorize City Manager to Enter Into a Professional Services Agreement with Alaska Rim 
Engineering for Design Services for Airport Utilities 

 
H. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 

1. Mr. Joe Lawton – Alaska State Fair 
• Commented on the Springer system. 
• Stated that the Fair has acquired 3 parcels adjacent to the fairgrounds, for a total of 80 

acres and explained the usage of the acreage. 
• Explained the status of the Commuter Center and the complications with the acreage 

near the Noisy Goose.  
• Announced that $30,000 from Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has been 

appropriated for the Farm Exhibit facility.  
• Reported that attendance increased slightly over 2% from previous years and projected 

revenue was up over 4%. The total number of fair goers was 312,519. 
2. Jeff Barnhart – Palmer Golf Course 

• Reported on the activity and state of the golf course.  
• Explained the activity on a monthly basis. 
• Reported on the profit and stated that costs are under control but does not expect an 

overwhelming increase in profit. 
• Reported on the progress of the parking lot paving and the proposed storage building. 
 

I. BOROUGH REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska        October 14, 2003 
                 Page 3 of 5 

J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
      

K. HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
L. BIDS 
 
Item 1 – Fire Department Training Facility Foundation 
 
City Manager Healy explained the bid request and the process of the request. 
MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

To negotiate and enter into a contract with E & E 
Construction, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $14,210. 

 
Discussion ensued regarding the process in which the bid was received and the changes needed 
to the Charter to allow the City Manager the authority to approve contracts of a similar nature 
without prior approval of council.  
 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
M. OLD BUSINESS  
 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Planning and Zoning Commission Member Appointment (2 members) 
MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

To affirm the Mayor’s appointments of Cynthia Payne 
and Richard Best to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission 

 
Mayor Cooper nominated Richard Best and Cynthia Payne and asked that council vote on the 
nominations, the vote was as follows: 
Cynthia Payne – 6 
Richard Best – 4 
Guy AlLee – 3 
Jackie Carl – 1  
 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
O. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Healy reported on the following items: 

• The status of the Utility Service Areas and application to the Regulatory Commission of 
Alaska (RCA).  

• The dispatch service meeting held on October 14, 2003. City Manager Healy stated that 
the City of Wasilla has announced they will not be opening their dispatch center until 
December. City Manager Healy stated that Wasilla is in the process of hiring dispatchers 
and has expressed a desire to hire City of Palmer dispatchers. City Manager Healy 
explained that Wasilla has requested that any dispatchers hired by them continue to work 
in the Palmer center until the City of Wasilla has the ability to open their center. Mr. 
Healy explained the need to coordinate efforts between the City of Wasilla and City of 
Palmer and resolve issues that have arisen.  

• Commented on the Traffic Report – Public Review Draft. City Manager Healy explained 
that the document is a needed piece to present to the Department of Transportation (DOT) 
and that the document will be forwarded to the Federal Highway Administration. 



______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska        October 14, 2003 
                 Page 4 of 5 

Discussion ensued regarding the meetings to be held on the plan and those who will be 
participating in the meetings.  

• Commented on the Baptist Church utility extension project. City Manager Healy stated 
that the parties have come to an agreement and explained the property transfers involved.  

• Commented on the Alaska Family Resource project and the anticipated approval from the 
State of Alaska.  

• Wage study – the study will be presented at the budget work session on October 21, 2003. 
City Manager Healy commented on the impact of the wage study on the upcoming budget.  

• Explained the process of the budget work session.  
• Commented on the meeting held with George Wuerch and Henry Springer from the Knik 

Bridge and Toll Authority.  
 
P. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
The City Clerk reported on the following items: 

• Stated that she felt the election to have been a clean, certifiable election and stated her 
pleasure to be involved with the election process in Palmer. 

• Stated that the website for the City of Palmer is underway and anticipates the site to go 
live on January 15, 2004. The website address will be: www.cityofpalmer.org. 

• Explained that it is her priority to update the Palmer Municipal Code and prepare the 
Charter to be placed on the October 2004, ballot.  

 
Q. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

1. Eowyn Ivey – Frontiersman 
Ms. Ivey announced that the meeting would be her last and that she has tendered her 
resignation with the Frontiersman. She stated that she has taken employment with Fireside 
Books and has enjoyed working with the council.  

 
R. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Combs thanked Eowyn for her job with the Frontiersman and expressed his 
gratitude to the citizens of Palmer for their vote. He further stated that he felt the vote meant an 
affirmation of the work that has been accomplished by the council, administration and City of 
Palmer staff. Council Member Combs stated that the team has worked hard to make Palmer a 
great place. Council Member Combs congratulated Council Member Erbey and stated that he is 
looking forward to working with him and expressed his respect for Mr. Fondahn.  
 
Council Member Hanson expressed his regret over Eowyn leaving the Frontiersman and 
thanked her for her work. Council Member Hanson stated his appreciation of the vote on 
Proposition 1, believing the vote to be a great step for Palmer in creating further opportunities for 
the youth of the community. Council Member Hanson congratulated Council Members Combs 
and Erbey and thanked the council for their support of the football team. 
 
Council Member Carrington congratulated Council Members Combs and Erbey and asked 
Eowyn to ensure that her replacement be thoroughly trained.  
 
Council Member Pippel congratulated Council Members Combs and Erbey on their victory and 
stated that the large margin victory obtained by Council Member Combs expresses Council 
Member Combs support of the community. Council Member Pippel spoke of Council Member 
Erbey’s attributes and commented on the high school football games refereed by Council Member 
Erbey. Council Member Pippel thanked the council for bringing Proposition 1 to the ballot and 

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska        October 14, 2003 
                 Page 5 of 5 

thanked the citizens of Palmer for their support of the bond. Council Member Pippel commented 
on a meeting he attended with Bill Allen and Under Secretary Thomas Dorr from the Department 
of Agriculture for Rural Development. Council Member Pippel commented on Spenard Building 
Center locating in Palmer and suggested that a letter be written welcoming them to Palmer. 
Council Member Pippel complimented the City contractor at Sherrod Ballfields for the work 
accomplished and expressed his pleasure with the product, stating that the ballfields are the finest 
set of ballfields in the state of Alaska. Council Member Pippel spoke of Bernie Nieman who has 
the responsibility of the tennis courts for the previous 20 years and the work that Mr. Nieman has 
accomplished. Council Member Pippel stated that he would like the city to assume the 
responsibility for the courts and offer public recognition honoring Mr. Nieman’s service. Council 
Member Pippel also stated that he felt that it is appropriate for the City to offer Mr. Nieman the 
unofficial, unpaid job as tennis consultant.  
 
Council Member Erbey congratulated Council Member Combs and thanked the citizens of 
Palmer for the opportunity to serve on council. Council Member Erbey stated his desire to work 
hard and to meet the expectations of the citizens of Palmer.  
 
Council Member Vanover congratulated Council Members Combs and Erbey and thanked City 
Manager Healy and City Attorney Snodgrass for the work accomplished on the Baptist Church 
project. Council Member Vanover referred to the School Board agenda and asked that upcoming 
meetings be added to the Palmer City Council agendas.  
 
Mayor Cooper congratulated Council Members Combs and Erbey and commented on a law 
enforcement safety dinner that he attended. Mayor Cooper reported that at the dinner, Jerry 
Rowland received the unsung hero award for his contributions to the Palmer Police Department. 
Mayor Cooper reminded council of the work session scheduled for October 15, 2003, and asked 
council to consider the work needed to accomplish future annexations.  
 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:52 pm.  
 
APPROVED THIS 14th day of October 2003. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Jim Cooper, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Janette M. Persinger, City Clerk 


	City of Palmer, Alaska

